1
Stock Code:5609

{English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Financial Statements

With Independent Auditors® Review Report
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Address: 11F, No. 160, Sec. 6, Min Chuan East Road, Taipei,
Taiwan, R.O.C,

Telephone: (02)2796-3660

The independent auditors’ review report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ review report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.



Table of contents

Page

Contents
1. Cover Page l
2. Table of Contents 2
3. Independent Auditors’ Review Report 3
4. Consolidated Balance Sheets 4
5. Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 5
6. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 6
7. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 7
8. Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
(1) Company history 8
(2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements 8
(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted 8~13
(4) Summary of significant accounting policies 13~19
(5) Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources 20
of estimation uncertainty
(6) Explanation of significant accounts 20~38
(7) Related-party transactions 38~39
(8) Pledged assets 39
(9) Commitments and contingencies 40
(10) Losses Due to Major Disasters 40
(11) Subsequent Events 40
(12) Other 4]
(13) Other disclosures
(a) Information on significant transactions 42 ~44
(b) Information on investees 44
(c) Information on investment in mainland China 45
(14) Segment information 46



S EELRGARRGTH

KPMG

At 11049/ BAEER79E68HB(SIL101 A Telephone |5 + 886 (2) 8101 6566
68F., TAIPEI 101 TOWER, No. 7, Sec. 5, Fax {HEL + 886 (2) 8101 6667
Xinyi Road, Taipei City 11049, Taiwan (R.0.C.) Internet  #BHE kpmg.com/tw

Independent Auditors’ Review Report

To the Board of Directors
Dimerco Express Corporation:

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of the Dimerco Express Corporation (the
"Company") and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group") as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, as well as the changes in equity and cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and
International Accounting Standards (“1ASs™) 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” endorsed and issued into effect
by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. Our responsibility is to express a
conclusion on the consolidated financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

Except as explained in the Basis for Qualified Conclusion paragraph, we conducted our reviews in accordance
with Statement of Auditing Standards 65, “Review of Financial Information Performed by the Independent
Auditor of the Entity”. A review of the consolidated financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily
of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing standards and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion.

Basis for Qualified Conclusion

As stated in Note 4(b), the consolidated financial statements included the financial statements of certain non-
significant subsidiaries, which were not reviewed by independent auditors. These financial statements reflect the
total assets amounting to $1,242,455 thousand and $1,165,608 thousand, constituting 29% of consolidated total
assets; and the total liabilities amounting to $421,682 thousand and $301,661 thousand, constituting 18% and
14% of the consolidated total liabilities at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively; as well as the total
comprehensive income (loss) amounting to $7,564 thousand, $73,932 thousand, $61,319 thousand and $32,042
thousand, constituting 4%, 88%, 31% and (32)% of the consolidated total comprehensive income (loss) for the
three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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Furthermore, as stated in Note 6(d), the other equity accounted investments of the Group in its investee
companies of $22,778 thousand and $18,610 thousand at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and its equity in
net earnings on these investee companies of $1,150 thousand, $(5) thousand, $1,678 thousand and $365
thousand for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, were recognized
solely on the financial statements prepared by these investee companies, but not reviewed by independent
auditors.

Qualified Conclusion

Except for the adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had the financial statements
of certain consolidated subsidiaries and equity accounted investee companies described in the Basis for
Qualified Conclusion paragraph above been reviewed by independent auditors, based on our reviews and the
review report of other auditors (please refer to Other Matter paragraph), nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at June 30, 2018 and 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, as well
as its consolidated cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and 1ASs 34, “ Interim
Financial Reporting” endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic
of China.

Other Matter

We did not review the financial statements of Dimerco Air Forwarders (HK) Ltd., subsidiaries of the Group.
Those financial statements were reviewed by another auditor, whose review report has been furnished to us, and
our conclusion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Dimerco Air Forwarders (HK) Ltd., is based
solely on the review report of another auditor. The financial statements of Dimerco Air Forwarders (HK) Ltd.
reflect total assets amounting to $535,003 thousand and $506,118 thousand, constituting 13% and 12% of
consolidated total assets at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and total revenues amounting to $421,915
thousand, $401,988 thousand, $853,006 thousand and $818,891 thousand, constituting 10% of consolidated
total revenues for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
August 6, 2018

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the Consolidated statement of financial position,
financial performance and its cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to review such consolidated financial statements
are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors® review report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ review report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
Reviewed only, not audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consoclidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Daollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Operating revenue (note 6{m))

Operating costs (note 6(i)}

Gross profit from operations

Operating expenses (notes 6(c), (), {i), (k), (n) and

s

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Expected credit loss for bad debt expense
Total operating expenses

Net operating income
Non-operafing income and expenses (notes 6(d)

and (0)):

Other income

Other gains and losses

Finance costs

Share of gain (Joss) of associates accounted for
under equity method

Total non-operating income and expenses
Net income before tax
Less: Income tax expense (note 6(j))
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Other components of other comprehensive
income that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences for

foreign operations
Other components of other comprehensive income
that may be reclassifted to profit or loss
Components of other comprehensive income
that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Profit attributable to:
Owners of parent
Non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income (Joss) atiributable to:
Owners of parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (NT dollars) (note 6(1))
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

For the three months ended June 30

For the six months ended June 30

2018 2017 2013 2017
_Amount = % _ Amount % _ Amount % _ Amount %
$ 4,223,839 100 4,097,557 100 8,143,384 100 8,134,455 100

3.597.602 85 3.524,823 86 6,918,128 5 7.013,778 87
626,237 15 572,734 14 1,225,756 1 1,120.677 13
172,455 4 163,160 4 349,564 4 329,522 4
343450 9 313,395 8§ 701,805 9 644,080 8

16,457 - 14,295 - 28.995 - 15.225 -

532,362 13 490.850 1 ] =0‘80;364 i3 588.836 12
93.875 2 81.884 2 145.392 2 131.841 1
1,775 - 49 - 4,327 - 3,508 -
9,893 - (4,384 .- 12,704 - (6,45%9) -
(1,905 - (1,788) - (3,848) - (3,766} -
1.150 - 5 _ - 1.678 - 365 -
10913 - {6,128) _ - 14,861 - (5952) __ -
104,788 2 75,756 2 160,253 2 125,889 1
30.330 - 23.036 i 35.636 - 29.953
74.458 2 52,720 1 124617 2 95,936 1
106,403 2 30,856 ] 73,950 i (196,838) (2)
106,403 2 30.856 i 73.950 1 (196,838) (2)
106,403 2 30,856 1 73,950 1 {196,838) (2)
b 180,861 4 83,576 2 198,567 3 (100.902) (n
$ 72,138 2 51,840 ] 118,424 2 94,734 1
2.320 - 280 - 6,193 - 1,202 -
$ 74,458 52,720 1 124.617 2 95,936 1
$ 179,260 4 81,277 2 193,907 3 96,710y (D)
1.601 - 2,299 - 4,660 - (4,192} _ -
5 180,861 4 83.576 2 198,567 3 (100,902) (N
kY 0.58 0,42 0.95 0.77
b 0.57 0.42 0.94 0.76

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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{English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
Reviewed only, not audited in accordance with generally aceepted auditing standards

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income before tax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit loss/ Provision for bad debt expense

Net loss on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest expense
Interest income
Dividend income
Cost of transfering treasury shares to employees
Share of gain of associates accounted under equity method
Loss on disposal of property, plan and equipment
Loss on disposal of investments
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain)
Amortization of long-term prepaid lease
Total adjustments to reconcile profit
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Total changes in operating assets
Changes in operating liabilities:
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liability
Total changes in operating liabilities
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities
Total adjustments
Cash inflov generated from operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of investments accounted under equity method
Proceeds from disposal of investments accounted under equity method
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in refundable deposits
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets
Increase in restricted time deposits
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in shori-term loans
Decrease in short-term loans
Repayments of long-term debt
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities
Treasury shares sold to employees
Change in non-controlling interests
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

For the six months ended June 30

2018 2017
160,253 125,889
21,601 22 478
44 56
28,995 15,225
2,900 -
3,848 3,766
2.210) (698)
(35) (29)
5,967 6,599
(1,678) (365)
4] 37
- 5,512
{8,998) 24,756
642 667
51,117 78,004
(264) 8,304
134,502 84,223
(14.283) (5.116)
119,955 87411
(3,623) (2,713)
(157,222) {21,663)
(11,241) (87,703)
(1.225) {219)
(1713.311) (112.298)
{53.356) {24.887)
(2.239) 53.117
158,014 179,006
2,210 698
35 29
(3,848) (3,766)
(14.730) (20.320)
141.681 155.647
(1,830) -
- 4,903
(22,620} (8,659)
174 804
(4,137) (53)
(1,126) 13,198
- (986)
{29.539) 9.207
90,000 -
(50,700) (10,885)
(62,956) @347
1,636 87)
30,713 21,787
(38.399) -
(29.706) 7.398
73.950 (196.838)
156,386 (24,586)
1.118.440 1.145.432
1,274,826 1,120,846




Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
Reviewed only, not audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(I) Company history

@)

Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. ("FSC"} which have already been adopted.

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION (DIMTW) (originally named Dimerco Express (Taiwan)
Corporation, changed in June 2012) was incorporated in August 1985 as a company limited by shares
under the laws of the Republic of China (ROC). The consolidated entities in the consolidated financial
statements include DIMTW and its subsidiaries (the Group). The Group is primarily engaged in the
business of air freight forwarding, ocean freight forwarding, and customs brokerage service, and related
investing activities.

The consolidated financial statements were reported to the Board of Directors and issued on August 6,

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") endorsed by the Financial

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The differences between the

current version and the previous version are as follows:

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations

Effective date
per JASB

Amendment to IFRS 2 "Clarifications of Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions"

Amendments to IFRS 4 "Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with JFRS 4
Insurance Contracts"

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments"
IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"
Amendment to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows -Disclosure Initiative"

Amendment to IAS 12 "Income Taxes- Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealized Losses"

Amendments to JAS 40 "Transfers of Investment Property"”

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle:
Amendments to [FRS 12
Amendments to JFRS 1 and Amendments to IAS 28

IFRIC 22 "Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration"

January 1, 20138
January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2017
January 1, 2017

January 1, 2018
January 1, 2017

January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018

(Continued)



DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Intertm Financial Statements

Except for the following items, the Group believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would not
have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows:

(i)

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments"

IFRS 9 replaces JAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” which
contains classification and measurement of financial instruments, impairment and hedge
accounting,

As aresult of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group adopted the consequential amendments to IAS
1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" which requires impairment of financial assets to be
presented in a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss and OCI. Previously, the
Group's approach was to include the impairment of trade receivables in administrative
expenses. Additionally, the Group adopted the consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures that are applied to disclosures about 2018 but generally have not been
applied to comparative information. ‘

The detail of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies are set out below:

1) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is
generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics. The standard climinates the previous IAS 39
categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS
9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of
the standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is
assessed for classification. For an explanation of how the Group classifies and measures
financial assets and accounts for related gains and losses under IFRS 9, please see note
4(c).

The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have any a significant impact on its accounting policies
on financial liabilities.

2)  Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss' model in JAS 39 with the ‘expected credit loss' (ECL)
mode]. The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortized
cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity
mstruments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognized eatlier than they are under IAS
39 — please see note 4(c).

(Continued)
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The adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as described below,

Differences in the camrying amounts of financial assets and financiai liabilities
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognized in retained earnings and
reserves as on January 1, 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 does
not generally reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and therefore is not comparable to
the information presented for 2018 under IFRS 9.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and

circumstances that existed at the date of initial application.

— The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

— The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading

as at FVOCL

Classification of financial assets on the date of initial application of IFRS 9

The following table shows the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under [FRS 9 for each class of the Group's financial assets

as of January 1, 2018.

1AS39 IFR&Y
Carrying Carrying
Measurement categories Amount Mueasurement cafegories Amount
Financial Assets
Investments under equity  Financial assets carried at cost 5,406 FVQCI 5,406
method (note 1)
Trade and other Loans and receivables (note 2) 2,143,038 Amonized cost 2,143,038
teceivables

Notel: As permitted by IFRS 9, the Group has designated these investments at the date
of initial application as measured at FVOCI.

Note2: Notes receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables that were classified
as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now classified at amortized cost.

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets under IAS 39 to
the carrying amounts under IFRS 9 upon transition to IFRS 9 on 1 January, 2018.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income

Beginning bala.;m: of financial assets
carried at cost (IAS 39)

Financial assets carried at cost 10
FvOCT

Total
Amortized cost

Beginning balarce of notes receivable
and account receivable

2017.12.31 2018.1.1 2018.1.1 2018.1.1
IAS 39 IFRS 9

Carrying Carrying Retained Other

Amount Reclassificati Remeasurements Amount entnings equily
H 5,406 (5,406) - -

- 5,406

5 5406 5.406 - -
8 2,143,038 - - 2,143,038 -

(Continued)
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Amendments to IAS 7 "Disclosure Initiative"

The amendments require disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flow and non-cash changes.

Amendments to IAS 12 "Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Loss"

The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets for unrealized losses and the
calculation of future taxable income.

The impact of IFRS endorsed by FSC but not yet effective

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 in accordance with Ruling No.
1070324857 issued by the FSC on July 17, 2018:

Effective date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB

IFRS 16 “Leases” January 1, 2019
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” ' January 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment features with negative compensation” January 1, 2019
Amendments to JAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term- interests in associates and joint ventures” January 1, 2019
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019

Except for the following items, the Group believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would not
have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows:

(@

IFRS 16“Leases™

IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

IFRS 16 introduces a single and an on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A
lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. In addition, the nature of
expenses related to those leases will now be changed since IFRS 16 replaces the straight-line
operating lease expense with a depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense
on lease liabilities. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-
value items. The lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard — i.¢. the lessors will
continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

(Continued)
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The Group has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its consolidated
financial statements, wherein the detailed assessment has yet to be completed. The actual
impact of applying IFRS 16 on the financial statements in the period of initial application will
depend on future economic conditions, including the Group’ s discounting rate, the
composition of the Group’s lease portfolio at that date, the Group’ s latest assessment of
whether it will exercise any lease renewal options and the extent to which the Group chooses
to use practical expedients and recognition exemptions.

So far, the most significant impact identified is that the Group will have to recognize the new
assets and liabilities for its operating leases of offices, warehouse and factory facilities.No
significant impact is expected for the Group’s finance leases. Besides, The Group does not
expect the adoption of IFRS 16 to have any impact on its ability to comply with the revised
maximum leverage threshold loan covenant.

1) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Group has an arrangement that was not in the legal form of a lease, for which it
concluded that the arrangement contains a lease of equipment under IFRIC 4. On
transition to IFRS 16, the Group can choose whether to:

-apply the IFRS 16 definition of a lease to all its contracts; or
-apply a practical expedient and not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.

The Group plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease
upon transition. This means that it will apply IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into before
January 1, 2019 and identified as leases in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

2}  Transition
As a lessee, the Group can either apply the standard using the following:
‘retrospective approach; or
'modified retrospective approach with optional practical expedients.
The lessee applies the election consistently to all of its leases.

On January 1, 2019, the Group plans to initially apply IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be
recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at January 1,
2019, with no restatement of comparative information.

When applying the modified retrospective approach to leases previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17, the lessee can elect, on a lease-by-lease basis, whether to
apply a number of practical expedients on transition. The Group is assessing the potential
impact of using these practical expedients.

(Continued)
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The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

As of the date the following IFRSs that have been issued by the IASB, but not yet endorsed by the
FSC:

Effective date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between Effective date to
an Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture” . be determined
by IASB
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts™ January 1, 2021

The Group assessed that the above IFRSs may not be relevant to The Group.

(4) Summary of significant accounting policies

Except for the following, the significant accounting policies applied in these consolidated financial
statements are consistent with those applied in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017. For related information, please refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

(a)

(b

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the "Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers" (hereinafter referred to as the
Regulations) and 1AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting endorsed by the FSC, and do not present all
the disclosures required for a complete set of annual consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Statements, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed by the FSC (hereinafter referred
to as the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC).

Basis of consolidation

The principles of preparation of the consolidated financial statements are the same as those of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. For related information,
please refer to note 4(c) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2017.

Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Percentage of ownership
by DIMTW, directly or indirectly,
at

: Primary June 30, December June 30,
Investor Naine of subsidiary business 2018 31, 2017 2017 Remarks
DIMTW  Dimerco Interational Logistic Corp. Holding company  100.00 %  100.00 % 100.00 %
(DiL)
DIMTW  Dimerco Express Holding Co., Ltd. Holding company  100.00 % 100.00 %  100.00 %
(Holding)

(Continued)
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Pereentage of ownership
by DIMTW, directly or indircetly,

at
Primary June 30, December  June 30,

Investor Name of subsidiary husiness 2018 31,2017 2017 Remarks

DIMTW  Dimerco Freight System Corporation Global logistics 99.99%  99.99 % 99.99 % Note 2
(DFSTW) service

DIMTW  Dimerco Express (Singapore) Pte Ltd. Global logistics 86.11%  86.11 % 86.11 % Note 2
(DIMSG) service

DIMTW  Foreign Settlement Co.,, Lid. Settlement center 2000 %  20.00 % 20.00 %
(FSC)

DIMTW  Foreign Seftlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 1500% 1500 % 15.00 %
(FSC HK)

DIMHK  Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 3500% 35.00% 3500 %
(FSC HK)

DFSHK  Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 3500%  35.00% 3500 %
{FSC HK)

DFSTW  Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 15.00% 15,00 % 15.00 %
(FSC HK)

DIMGB  Foreign Settlement Co,, Ltd. Settlement center - % 2000% 20.00 %
(FSC)

DIMSG  Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 2000%  2000%  20.00%
(FSC)

DIMHK  Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 6000%  40.00% 4000 %
(FSC)

DIL Dimerco Air Forwarders (HK) Lid. Global logistics 99.99% 9992 % 99.99 %
{DIMHK) service

DIL Dimerco Express (Singapore) Pte Ltd. Global logistics 13.89% 13.39% 13.89 % Note 2
(DIMSG) service

DIL Bimerco Express (U.K.) Ltd. Global logistics 3750% 100.00% 100.00 % Note 2
{DIMGBE) service

DiL Dimerco Express (U.S.A.) Corp. Global logistics 100.00 % 100.00% 100.00 %
(DIMUS) service

PIL Global Marketing System Co,, Lid, Global logistics 100.00 % 100,00 %  100.00 %
{GMS) service

DIMHK  Dimerco International Logistics (Shanghai) Co., Global logistics 9999 %  99.99 % 99.99 % Note 2
Ltd. service
(DILSHA)

DIMHK,  Dimerco International Transportation (Shanghai) Global logistics 100.00% 100.00 % 100.00 %
Co., Ltd. service
(DIMCN)

DIMHK  Dimerco International Logistics (Shenzhen) Co., Global logistics 10000 % 100.00 %  100.00 % Note 2
Ltd. service
(DILSZX)

DIMHK  Dimerco Zhonging Int'l Express Co., Ltd. Global logistics 7500% 75.00%  75.00 %
(ZIDCN) service

DIMHK  Dimerco Vietfracht (JV) Co., Lid. Global logistics 75.00%  75.00 % 75.00 % Note 2
(DIMVN) service

FSCHK  Dimerco Express (U.K.) Ltd Global logistics 62.50 % - % - %
(DIMGB) services

GMS Dimerco Express Phil, Inc Global logistics 60.01 % - % - %
(DIMPH) services

GMS Diversified International Logistics Service Global logistics 100.00 % - % - %
Company Ltd services

Helding  Dimerco Logistics Sdn Bhd. Global logistics 49.00%  49.00%  49.00 % Notes 1

(DILMY)

service

and 2

(Continued)
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Percentage of ownership
by DIMTW, directly or indirectly,

at
Primary June 30, December June 30,

Investor Name of subsidiary business 2018 31,2017 2017 Remarks

Holding Dimerco Express (Thailand) Corp. Ltd. Global logistics 4899 % 4899 % 48.99 % Notes 1
{DIMTH) service and 2

Holding  Dimerco Express Phils. Inc. Global logistics 3999% 3999% 39.99 % Note 2
(DIMPH) service

Holding  Dimerco Express (Australia) Pty Ltd Global logistics 100.00 % 10000 %  100.00 % Note2
{DIMALL) service

Holding  Dimerco Express (Korea) Corp. Global logistics 100.00 % 100.00%  100.00 % Note 2
(DIMKR) service

Holding  Dimerco Express (Canada) Corp. Global logistics 100.00 % 100.00%  100.00 % Note 2
(DIMCA) service

Holding  Diversified International Service Logistics Global logistics 100.00 % 100.00 %  100.00 % Note 2
System Corporation ) service
(DSLUS)

Holding  Dimerco Express (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Global logistics 100.00 % 100.00 %  100.00 % Note 2
(DIMMY) service

Holding  Dimerco Express Netherlands B.V. Global logistics 100.00 % 100.00 %  100.00 % Note 2
(DIMNL) service

Holding  Diversified Freight System Ltd. Global logistics 99.99% 099.99%  99.99 % Note2
(DFSHK) service

Holding  Diversified Transportation (HK & China) Co.,  Global logistics 100.00 %  100.00 % 100.00 % Note 2
Lid. service
(DTLHK)

DFSHK  Diversified International Transportation Global logistics 10000 % 100.00%  100.00 % Note 2
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. service
(DESCN)

DTLHK  Diversified Transportation (China) Co., Ltd. Global logistics 100.00 % 100.00% 100.00 % Note2
{DTLCN) service

DIMUS  Dimerco Customs Brokerage Co. Ltd Brokerage service  100.00 %  100.00 %  100.00 % Note2
(DCBUS)

DIMSG  Dimerco Express (India) Pte Ltd. Global logistics 60.00%  60.00 % 60.00 % Note 2
(DIMIN) service

DIMMY  Danau Muhibbah Real estate 100.00 % 100.00% 100.00 % Note 2

investment
DIMPH  Peerless Express Forwarders Corp. Global logistics 3099% 3599 % - % Notes 1
service and 2
Note 1: The Company owns less than 50% of the subsidiaries' voting stock, but the Company has control over the subsidiaries'

financial and operating polices through agreement with other investors. Therefore, the Company includes the
subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements.
Note 2:

In September 2017, DIMAU increased capital by AUD1,650 thousands and 100% purchased
by Holding.

It is an insignificant subsidiary, and its financial statements have not been reviewed.

In November 2017, DIMPH acquired 39.99% shares of Peerless Express Forwarders Corp. and
the company was treated as subsidiary of the Group. Therefore, the company is included in the
consolidated financial statements.

In May 2018, FSCHK participated in the capital increase of DIMGB with the amount of
GBPS500 thousands.

(Continued)
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In May 2018, GMS acquired 60.01% shares of DIMPH from non-controiling interests.
Therefore, DIMPH became fully owned by the Group.

In May 2018, Diversified International Logistics Service Company Ltd was incorporated and
fully owned by GMS; therefore, became a subsidiary of the Group.

{c) Financial instruments

(1)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: measured at amortized cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

The Group shall reclassify all affected financial assets only when it changes its business model
for managing its financial assets.

1

2)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset measured at amortized cost is initiaily recognized at fair value, plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. These assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, and impairment
loss, are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in
profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT )

On injtial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

(Continued)
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A financial asset measured at FVOCI is initially recognized at fair value, plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses, and impairment losses, deriving from debt investments are recognized
in profit or loss; whereas dividends deriving from equity investments are recognized as
income in profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses of financial assets measured at FVOCI
are recognized in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI of equity
investments are reclassified to profit or loss. However, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI of debt investments are reclassified to retain earnings instead of profit or loss.

Dividend income derived from equity investments is recognized on the date that the
Group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is
normally the exdividend date.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value at initial recognition.
Attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent
changes that are measured at fair value, which take into account any dividend and
interest income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts
receivable, other receivable and refundable deposits).

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss
(ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible defauit events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

(Continued)
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12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that resuit from default events that are possible
within the 12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months}).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking
information.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
¢ credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
recognized in other comprehensive income instead of reducing the carrying amount of
the asset. The Group recognizes the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) in
profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire, or when the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

(Continued)
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(i) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Any attributable transaction costs
thereof are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss and
are included in the line item of non-operating income and expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income. When the fair value of a derivative instrument is positive, it is
classified as a financial asset, whereas when the fair value is negative, it is classified as a
financial liability.

{(d) Revenue from contracts with customers

(e)

®

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group recognizes revenue when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. The
accounting policies for the Group’s main types of revenue are explained below.

(i)  Freight Forwarding

The Group provides air freight forwarding, ocean freight forwarding and custom brokerage
services. Revenue from providing services is recognized in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.

Employee benefits

The pension cost in the consolidated financial statements was calcujated and disclosed on a year to
date basis by using the actuarially determined pension cost rate at the end of the prior fiscal year,
adjusted for significant market fluctuations since that time and for significant curtailments,
settlements, or other significant one time event.

Income tax

Tax expense in the interim financial statements is measured and disclosed according to paragraph
B12 of IAS 34 "Interim Financial Reporting™.

Income tax expense for the year is best estimated by muitiplying pretax income for the interim

-reporting period by the effective annual tax rate as forecasted by the management. This should be

recognized fully as current tax expense .

Temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their respective tax bases shall be measured based on the effective tax rate at the time
of realization or liquidation, and recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income as tax
expense.

(Continued)
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Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the interim consolidated financial statements is in conformity with IAS 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” endorsed by FSC. The standard requires management to make judgments,
estimations and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

During the preparation of the interim consolidated financial statements, the management adopts similar
method used in accounting policy judgements and assumptions which are in conformity with note 5 of the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2017,

Explanation of significant accounts

Except for the following disclosures, there is no significant difference as compared with those disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. Please refer to Note 6 of the
2017 annual consolidated financial statements.

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31,
June 30, 2018 2017 June 30, 2017
Cash on hand $ 5,888 4,449 4,637
Checking accounts and savings accounts 1,153,202 1,077,287 1,087,159
Time deposits 115,736 36.704 29.050
Cash and cash equivalents in statement ~ § 1,274,826 1,118,440 1,120,846

of cash flows

Please refer to note 6(p) for the interest rate risk and the fair value sensitivity analysis of the
financial assets and liabilities of the Group,

(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

June 30, 2018

Financial liabilities held for trading;
Derivative instruments not used for hedging h) 2,900

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage the exposures due to fluctuations of
foreign exchange risk from its operating activities. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the
Group reported the following derivatives financial instruments as financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss without the application of hedge accounting.

Forward contracts:

June 30, 2018
Contract
amount Nominal
(thousand) Currency amount
Forward contracts b (2,900) USD 2,500

(Continued)
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As of December 31 and June 30, 2017, the Group did not use any derivative financial instrument not

use for hedging.

Notes and accounts receivable

December 31,

June 30, 2018 2017 June 30, 2017
Notes receivable $ 10,630 10,366 6,752
Accounts receivable 2,060,771 2,195,703 2,013,729
Overdue receivable 3,828 3,398 5,432
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts— 91,596 63,031 74,470
accounts receivable
allowance for doubtful accounts — 3,828 3,398 5,432
overdue receivable
$ 1,979,805 2,143,038 1,946,011

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of
lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables on June 30, 2018. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due, as well as incorporated forward looking information. The loss allowance provision as of

June 30, 2018 was determined as follows:

Weighted-
average
Gross carrying  expected credit Loss allowance
amount loss rate provision
Current $ 1,585,114 1% 18,113
1 to 30 days past due 411,848 7% 29,525
31 to 60 days past due 31,355 45% 14,414
61 to 90 days past due 7,275 60% 4,365
91 to 365 days past due 15,031 100% 15,031
More than 366 days 13.976 100% 13,976

$ 2,064,599

95,424

As of December 31 and June 30, 2017, the Group applies the incurred loss model to consider the
loss allowance provision of notes and trade receivable, and the aging analysis of notes and trade
receivable, which were past due but not impaired, was as follows:

1 to 90 days past due

December 31,

2017 June 30,2017

91.011 12,661

(Continued)
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The movement in the allowance for notes and accounts receivable was as follows:

For the six months ended June 30, 2017
For thesix  Individually Collectively

months ended assessed assessed

June 30, 2018 impairment impairment Total
Balance on January 1, 2018 and 2017 per $ 66,429 5,029 59,648 64,677

IAS 39

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 -
Balance on January 1, 2018 per IFRS 9 66,429
Impairment loss recognized 28.995 403 14,822 15,225
Balance on June 30, 2018 and 2017 5 95,424 5,432 74,470 79,902

Investments under equity method

A summary of the Group's financial information for equity-accounted investees at the reporting date
is as follows:

December 31,
June 30, 2018 2017 June 30, 2017
Associates S 22,778 19,142 18.610

(i) Associates

The Group’s financial information for investments accounted for using the equity method that
are individually insignificant was as follows:

December 31,
June 30, 2018 2017 June 30, 2017
Balance of individually S 22,778 19.142 18,610
insignificant associate's equity
For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Attributable to the Group:
Income from continuing b 1,150 (5) 1,678 365
operations
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income $ 1,150 (&) 1,678 365

(ii} Collateral

As of June 30, 2018, December 31 and June 30, 2017, the investments in equity-accounted
associates of the Group had not been pledged as collateral or restricted in any way.

(Continued)
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(iii) The unreviewed financial statements of investments accounted for using equity method

Investments were accounted for by the equity method, and the share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of those investments were calculated based on the financial statements
that have not been reviewed.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost, depreciation, and impairment loss of the property, plant and equipment of the Group were
as follows:

Transportation Office Leasehold Other
Land Buildings equipment i t improvements i t Total
Cost or deemed cost:
Balance at January 1, 2018 s 124,332 545,852 38,818 150,961 65,650 57,704 1,043,317
Additions - . 700 3,483 15,449 2,088 22,620
Disposals - - (2,218) (844) (16,574) @2) (19,658)
Effect of currency translation 705 7491 410 876 708 1,159 11,349
Balance at June 30, 2018 5 185,037 553,343 37,710 154,476 65,233 61,529 1.057,628
Balance at January 1, 2017 3 186,853 574,160 45,495 145,460 67,701 59,844 1,079,513
Additions - - - 7,408 1,251 - 8,650
Disposals - - . (613) (755) (943) 637} (2,048)
Effect of emrrency translation (1,839 (24.684) (2,142) 4.239) (2.734) {3.262) (38,895)
Balance at June 30, 2017 5 185,019 549,476 42,740 147,874 65,215 55,945 1,046,329
Depreciation and impatrment Joss:
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ . 153,474 27,325 124,628 53,359 51,226 410,012
Depreciation - 7,780 2,285 6,450 3,608 1478 21,601
Disposal - - (2,056) (921) {16,444) 22) (19,443)
Effect of currency translation _ 5,396 293 744 246 (1663 3512
Balance at June 30, 2018 s - 163,650 27,846 130,901 40,765 52,516 415,682
Balance at Janvary 1, 2017 s - 145,689 34,799 116,752 52312 51,914 401,466
Depreciation - 7,854 2,237 8,355 1,806 2,226 22478
Dispesal - - (547) 631) (295) (634) (2,109
Effect of currency translation - (6,626) (1,649) (3.595) (2.353) (3.245) {17.468)
Balance et June 30, 2017 s - 146,917 34,840 120.881 51,470 50,261 404,369
Carrying value;
January 1, 2018 5 184,332 392,378 11,493 26,333 12,291 6,478 633,305
June 30, 2018 H 185,037 389,693 9,864 23,575 24,464 9,313 641,946
June 30, 2017 s 185,01% 402,550 7,900 26.993 13,805 5,684 641,960
January 1, 2017 $ 186,853 428,471 10,696 23,708 15,389 7.930 578,047

Please refer to note 8 for the information on pledged property, plant and equipment as of June 30,
2018, December 31 and June 30, 2017,

(Continued)
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Intangible assets

The cost of the intangible assets of the Group in 2018 and 2017 was as follows:

Goodwill
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 26,476
Effect of currency translation 271
Balance at June 30, 2018 h) 26,747
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 27,268
Effect of currency translation (577)
Balance at June 30, 2017 3 26,691

Short-term and long-term borrowings
The details, terms and clauses of the Group's short-term and long-term borrowings were as follows:

(i)  Short-term borrowings

June 30, 2018
Interest rate  Maturity
Currency (%) year Amount
Unsecured loans NTD 1.02~1.07 2018 $__ 584,700
December 31, 2017
Interest rate  Maturity
Currency (%) year Amount
Unsecured loans NTD 1.07~1.10 2018 $_ 545,400
June 30, 2017
Interest rate  Maturity
Currency (%) year Amount
Secured loans NTD 1.70 2017 § 10,000
Unsecured loans NTD 1.07~1.20 2017 483,400
Total $__ 493.400

As of June 30, 2018, December 31 and June 30, 2017, the unused credit facilities of the
Group's short-term borrowings amounted to $194,852 thousand, $197,670 thousand and
$112,432 thousand, respectively.

Please refer to note 6(p) for the information on the interest rate, foreign currency, and liquidity
risk.

The Group has pledged certain assets against the loans; please refer to note 8§ for additional
information.

(Continued)
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(i) Long-term borrowings

Secured loans
Unsecured loans
Total

Current
Non-current
Total

Secured loans
Unsecured loans
Total

Current
Non-current
Total

Secured loans
Unsecured loans
Unsecured loans
Total

Current
Non-current
Total

June 30, 2018
Interest rate  Maturity
Currency (%) year Amount
NTD 1.50 2018~2024 $ 36,713
NTD 1.30 2019 29.250
) 65.963
5 5,979
59,984
S__65963
December 31, 2017
Interest rate  Maturity
Currency (%) year Amount
NTD 1.50~1.60 2018~2024 % 39,669
NTD 1.30 2019 _ 89.250
§ 128919
$ 5,934
122,985
5__128.919
June 30,2017
Interest rate  Maturity
Currency {%) year Amount
NTD 1.60 2017~2024 $ 42,603
NTD 1.30 2018 89,250
PHD 9.55 2017 74
$_ 131927
$ 5,947
125.980
$__ 131,927

1)  Increase in, and repayment of, borrowings

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Group had no increase in long
term borrowings and the repayment amounted to $62,956 thousand and $3,417 thousand,

respectively.

As of June 30, 2018, December 31 and June 30, 2017, the unused credit facilities of the
Group's long-term borrowings amounted to $120,750 thousand, $60,750 thousand and

$60,750 thousand, respectively.
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2)  Collateral for loans

The Group has pledged certain assets against the loans; please refer to note 8 for
additional information,

(h) Operating leases —lessee

@)

Non-cancellable rental payables of operating leases were as follows:

December 31,
June 30, 2018 2017 June 30, 2017
Less than one year h) 156,071 177,804 130,067
Between one and five years 149,299 219.352 84.962
$ 305,370 397,156 215,029

The Group leases a number of warehouse and factory facilities under operating leases. The leases
typically run for a period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date.

Employee benefits
(i) Defined benefit plans

Since there were no significant market fluctuations, curtailments, liquidations, or other one off
events after the prior financial year ended, the Group's pension cost for the interim periods was
calculated on a year to date basis using the actuarially determined pension cost rate at
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Selling expenses $ 137 135 279 276
Administrative expenses 682 669 1.372 1,358
3 819 804 1,651 1.634

(if) Defined contribution plans

For the three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the pension costs under
the defined contribution method were $7,727 thousand, $6,729 thousand, $15,363 thousand
and $13,600 thousand, respectively.

Income tax

Income tax expense in the interim consolidated report was measured and disclosed in accordance
with the estimated average annual effective income tax rate applied to the pre tax income.

{Continued)
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According to the amendments to the "Income Tax Act” enacted by the office of the President of the
Republic of China (Taiwan) on February 7, 2018, an increase in the corporate income tax rate from
17% to 20% is applicable upon filing the corporate income tax return commencing year 2018. The
group spreads the effect of the change amounting to $1,524 thousand in the tax rate by an adjustment
to the estimated annual effective income tax rate.

The components of income tax expense were as follows:

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Current income tax expense (benefits)
Current period h 26,305 23,160 31,611 30,017
10% surtax on undistributed earnings 3,616 - 3,616 -
Adjustment for prior periods 409 (64) 409 (64)
Income tax expense from continuing- 8 30,330 23,036 35,636 29,953

operations
The tax returns of DIMTW have been examined by the tax authorities through 2015.

Upon examination on the certified tax retum of year 2015, the tax authorities and the Company had
differences in the aspects of its employees working overseas, wherein the tax authorities determined
that the Company should pay additional tax of $973 thousand. The Company had filed an appeal on
this matter.

Capital and other equity

Except for those mentioned below, there were no significant changes in capital and other equity for
the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. Please refer to note 6(j) to the consolidated financial
statermnents for the year ended December 31, 2017, for related information.

(i) Additional paid-in capital

The compoenents of additional paid-in capital as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

December 31,
June 30, 2018 2017 June 30, 2017

Additional paid in capital b 15,357 15,357 15,357
Gain on sale of property, plant and 28 28 28

equipment
Difference between consideration 4334 4,334 4,334

and carrying amount of

subsidiaries acquired
Treasury share transactions 12,086 6,399 6,399

$ 31,805 26,118 26,118

(Continued)
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Retained earnings

The appropriations of earnings for years 2017 and 2016 as dividends to stockholders that were
approved by stockholders during their meetings on June 8, 2018, and June 8, 2017,
respectively, were as follows:

2017 2016
Amount Amount
per share per share
{(NT Total (NT Total
dollars) amount dollars) amount
Dividends distibuted to common

stockholders:
Cash g 1.18 148.680 2.00 248,490

The related information can be obtained from the Market Observation Post System.
Treasury stock
The information on stock bought back by DIMTW to reward employees is as follows:

Unit: thousand shares

2018 2017
Balance at January 1 4,755 6,000
Transferred to employees (1.755) (1.245)
Balance at June 30 3,000 4,755

In accordance with the Company’s policy on transferring treasury shares to its employees,
setting March 31, 2018 as the grant date for evaluating the fair value, the Company transferred
1,755 thousand shares of treasury shares for cash to its employees amounting to $30,713
thousand, and recognized a cost of share-based payment amounting to $5,967 thousand, which
was recorded under operating expenses. The cost of purchased of the transferred treasury
shares was $30,993 thousand, in which the Company recognized its capital surplus of $5,687
thousand. As of June 30, 2018, all the share-based payment options were exercised.

In accordance with the Company’ s policy on transferring treasury shares to its
employees, setting March 31, 2017 as the grant date for evaluating the fair value, the
Company transferred 1,245 thousand shares of treasury shares for cash to its employees
amounting to $21,787 thousand, and recognized a cost of share-based payment
amounting to $6,599 thousand, which was recorded under operating expenses. The cost
of purchased of the transferred treasury shares was $21,987 thousand, in which the
Company recognized its capital surplus of $6,399 thousand. As of June 30, 2017, all the
share-based payment options were exercised.

{Continued)
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Earnings per share

As of June 30, 2018, December 31 and June 30, 2017, the Company held treasury shares
amounting to $52,963 thousand, $83,956 thousand and $83,956 thousand, respectively.
According to Securities and Exchange Act regulations, the number of shares of treasury stock
is not allowed to exceed 10% of the number of shares issued. Moreover, the total value of
treasury stock is not allowed to exceed the sum of retained earnings, paid-in capital in excess
of par value, and realized capital surplus. During the six months ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, DIMTW was in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act.

According to Securities and Exchange Act regulations, treasury stock cannot be pledged. Until
the treasury stock is transferred, it does not carry any shareholder rights.

The calculation of the Company's basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for the six
months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, was as follows:

(i)

(i1)

Basic earnings per share

Net income attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company

Weighted-average number of

ordinary shares

Basic earnings per share (in NT

dollars)

Diluted earnings per share

Net income attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company

Weighted-average number of

ordinary shares (basic)

Impact of potential common shares
Effect of employee stock bonus
Weighted-average number of

ordinary shares (diluted)

Diluted earnings per share (in NT

dollars)

For the three months

For the six months

ended June 30 ended June 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 72.138 51.840 118.424 94,734
125,137 123,736 125,137 123,736
S 0.58 0.42 0.95 0.77

For the three months

For the six months

ended June 30 ended June 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 72,138 51,840 118,424 94,734
125,137 123,736 125,137 123,736
531 354 875 722
125,668 124,090 126,012 124,458
S 0.57 0.42 0.94 0.76
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(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

(n})

For the three months ended June 30, 2018

Asia Americas Europe Total
Major products/services lines:
Air freight forwarding $ 2,147,334 253,081 42,755 2,443,170
Ocean freight forwarding 901,203 611,375 96,410 1,608,988
Qthers 95.539 69,371 6,771 171,681

$_ 3,144,076 933.827 145,936 _ 4,223,839

For the six months ended June 30, 2018

Asia Americas Europe Total
Major products/services lines:
Air freight forwarding § 4,033,401 410,737 92,005 4,536,143
Ocean freight forwarding 1,693,382 1,094,191 176,923 2,964,496
Others 353.276 266.714 23,255 643,245

$_ 6,080,059 1,771,642 292,183 8.143.884

Employee compensation and directors' and supervisors' remuneration

In accordance with the Company's articles, the Company should contribute no less than 5% of the
profit as employee compensation and less than 5% as directors' and supervisors' remuneration when
it has realized profit for the year. Such profit means profit before income tax without deductig the
employees’ compensation and directors' and supervisors' remuneration. However, if the Company has
accumulated deficits (including adjustments to unappropriated earnings), the profit should be
reserved to offset the deficit. The amount of compensation for employees entitled to receive the
abovementioned employee compensation is approved by the board of directors. The recipients of
shares and cash may include the employees of the Company's affiliated companies who meet certain
conditions. The payment for director and supervisors' remuneration is must be in the form of cash.

The employees' compensation, and directors’ and supervisors' remuneration were recognized as
operating expenses on a specific percentage of the net income. These amounts are calculated by
using the Company's net income before tax (without the employees' compensation, and directors' and
supervisors' remuneration), multiplied by the percentage specified in the Company's article for each
period. For the three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Company

recognized its employees' compensation of $6,546 thousand, $4,665 thousand, $10,695 thousand and
$8,526 thousand, respectively, and directors' and supervisors' remuneration of $1,963 thousand,
$1,400 thousand, $3,208 thousand and $2,558 thousand, respectively.

In its financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company accrued
employees' compensation amounting to $18,551 thousand and $19,491 thousand, respectively, and

directors' and supervisors' remuneration amounting to $5,565 thousand and $5,847 thousand,
respectively, which was identical to the actual distribution. The information mentioned above can be
accessed on the Market Observation Post System.
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(0) Non-operating income and expenses

()

(i)

(i)

Other income

The details of the Group's other income for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, were as
follows:

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Interest income $ 1,173 422 2,210 698
Dividend income 35 29 35 29
Other 567 (402) 2,082 3,181
$ 1,775 49 4,327 3,908

Other gains and losses

The details of the Group's other gain and losses for the vears ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
were as follows: :

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange $ 12,869 (4,590) 15,808 2,014
Net losses on disposal of financial (3,089) - (2,900) -
assets measured at fair value
through profit
Losses on disposal of investments - - - (5,512)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, 102 (14) 41 (37
plant and equipment
Others 11 220 (163) (2.924)
3 9.893 (4,384) 12,704 (6,459)

Finance costs

The details of the Group's finance costs for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, were as
follows:

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
: 2018 2017 2018 2017
Interest expenses $ 1,905 1,788 § 3,848 3.766
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(p) Financial instruments

Except for those mentioned below, there were no significant changes in the Group's exposure to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. For related information, please refer to note 6(p) to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

(i) Credit risk

There was no customer concentration related to the Group's operating revenue at June 30,
2018, December 31 and June 30, 2017.

(i) Liquidity risk

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Contractual Within 6

amgunt cash flows months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 vears Over 5 vears
June 30, 2018 :
Non-dervative financiat liabilities
Short-term loans s 584,700 590,722 3,011 . 587,711 - B -
Long-lerm loans 65,963 68,275 175 6,254 36,160 19,594 5,992
Notes payable 28,801 28,801 28,801 - - B -
Accounts payable 1,214,144 1,184,744 1,184,744 - - - -
Dividend payable 148,680 148,680 148,680 - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities
Other forward exchange 2,900 2,900 2900 - - - -
§ 2,045,788 2,024,122 1.368.411 593,965 36,160 19,594 5,992
December 31, 2017
Non-gerivative financial liabilities
Short-1erm loans $ 545,400 551,318 2,959 548,359 - - -
Long-term loans 128,919 132,360 307 6,241 96,957 19,625 9,230
Notes payable 32,424 34,424 34,424 - - - -
Accounts payable 1,371,966 1,371,966 1,371.966 - - - -
5__ 2,078,709 2,090,068 1,409,656 554,600 96,957 19,625 9,230
June 30, 2017
Non-derivative financial Kabilities
Shon-term loans s 493,400 500,264 3,433 496,831 - - -
Long-term loans 131,927 135,745 344 6,291 95,065 19,667 12,478
Notes payable 24,908 24,908 24,908 - - - -
Accounts payable 1,193,193 1,193,193 1,193,193 - - - -
Dividend payable 248,490 248,490 248,490 - - - -
§_ 2,091,918 2,102,600 1,470,368 503,122 96,965 19,667 12,478

The Group does not expect the cash flows included in the maturity analysis to occur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.
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(iii) Market risk

1)

Currency risk
The Group's significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

Foreign Exchange
currency rate NTD

June 30, 2018
Financial assets:
Monetary items:
USD $ 6,440 30.4750 196,267
EUR $ 7,677 35.6070 27,357
Financial liabilities:
Monetary items:
USD $ 10,943 30.4750 333,488
December 31, 2017
Financial assets:
Monetary items:
usD $ 8,463 29.7330 251,635
Financial liabilities: '
Monetary items:
uUsD $ 10,932 29.7330 325,037
June 30, 2017
Financial assets:
Monetary items:
USD $ 6,987 30.4560 212,790
Financial liabilities: '
Monetary items:
USD $ 4,858 30.4560 147,955

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other
receivables that are denominated in foreign currency. A weakening (strengthening) of
3% of the NTD against the USD as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, would have increased or
decreased the net profit by $3,296 thousand and $1,945 thousand, respectively. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for both periods.

Since the Group has many kinds of functional currency, the information on foreign
exchange gain (loss) on monetary items is disclosed by total amount. For the three
months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, foreign exchange gain (loss)

(including realized and unrealized portions) amounted to $12,869 thousand, $(4,590)
thousand, $15,808 thousand and $2,014 thousand, respectively.

(Continued)
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Interest rate analysis

Please refer to the notes on liquidity risk management and interest rate exposure of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to the interest rate risk of
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments on the reporting date, Regarding
assets with variable interest rates, the analysis is based on the assumption that the amount
of assets outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year. The rate
of change is expressed as the interest rate increases or decreases by 1% when reporting to
management internally, which also represents the Group management's assessment of the
reasonably possible interest rate change.

If the interest rate had increased or decreased by 1%, the Group's net income would have
decreased or increased by $3,253 thousand and $3,127 thousand for the six months ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, with all other variable factors remaining constant.
This was mainly due to the Group's borrowing at variable rates and investment in
variable-rate bills.

(iv) Fair value

1)

Categories and fair value of financial instruments

Except for the followings, carrying amount of the Group's financial assets and liabilities
are valuated approximately to their fair value, and are not baséd on observable market
date and the value measurements which are not reliable. No additional fair value
disclosure is required in accordance to the regulations,

June 30, 2018

Carrying Fair value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income _
Unlisted stocks (domestic  § 5.477 - - 5,477 5,477
and overseas)
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents 1,274,826 - - - -
Accounts and notes 1,979,805 - - - -
receivables
Refundable deposits 71,749 - - - -
Subtotal 3.326,380 - - - -
Total $_3.331.857 - - 5,477 5,477
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June 30, 2018
Carrying Fair value
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial $ 2,900 - 2,900 - 2,900
liabilities
Financial liabilities measured
at amortized cost
Short-term borrowings 650,663 - - - -
Notes and accounts payable 1,243,545 - - - -
Dividend payable 148.680 - - - -
Total $_2.045.788 - 2.900 - 2.900
December 31, 2017
Fair value
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Unlisted stocks (domestic  $ 5,406 - - 5,406 5,406
and overseas)
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalerits 1,118,440 - - - -
Accounts and notes 2,143,038 - - - -
receivable
Refundable deposits 67.612 - - - -
Subtotal 3,329.090 - - - -
Total $ 3,334,496 - - 5,406 5.406

Financial liabilities measured
at amortized cost

Short-term borrowings 3 674319 - - - -
Notes and accounts payable 1.404.390 - - - -
Total $ 2,078,709 - - - -
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June 30, 2017

Fair value
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Listed stocks {domestic) b 5.312 - - 5312 5312
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 1,120,846 - - - -
Accounts and notes 1,846,011 - - - -
receivable
Refundable deposits 64,453 - - - -
Subtotal 3,131.310 - - - -
Total $ 3,136,622 - - 5,312 5312

Financial liabilities measured
at amortized cost

Short-term borrowings $ 625327 - - - -
Notes and accounts payable 1,218,101 - - - -
Dividend payable 248.490 - - - -
Total $ 2,091,918 - - - -
Valuation techniques and assumptions used in fair value determination
a}  Non-derivative financial instruments
If the financial instruments held by the Group have the quoted market price in
active market, the fair value of the assets is based on the quoted market price. The
fair value of equity instruments in OTC and debt instruments have a quoted market
price in active market, is based on the quoted market price in OTC.
The stocks and open-end funds held by the Group are financial instruments which
have standard terms and clauses in an active market. The fair value is measured by
the quoted market price.
However, if the instruments have no quoted market price in active market, the
Group uses market comparison approach to evaluate the fair value. The main
assumption is based on the investee’ s earnings before tax, interest expense,
depreciation, and amortization and the listed (over the counter) company’s earnings
used in computing the market price. The estimated price has been discounted due to
the price of the securities lacks the liquidity.
b)  Derivative financial instrument

Forward Exchange Contracts are normally priced based on the exchange rates
provided by the World Agencies.
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Fair value hierarchy

The Group used the fair value that can be observed in the market to measure the value of
assets and liabilities. Fair value levels are based on the degree in which the fair value can
be observed and grouped in to Levels | to 3 as follows:

a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identified assets or
liabilities.

b) Level 2: inputs, other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices). :

¢}  Level 3: inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

There was no such situation that the Company reclassified the financial instruments from
one level to another as of the reporting date.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
Unquoted equity
instruments
Balance at January 1, 2018 3 5,406
Effect of currency translation 71
Balance at June 30, 2018 ) 5477

Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

Quantified information of significant unobservable inputs was as follows:

Inter-relationship
between significant
unobservable inputs

Valuation Significant and fair value
Item technique unobservable inputs measurement

Financial assets at Comparative - Multiplier of price-to- The estimated fair

fair value through listed company earnings ratio (Asof  value would

other June 30, 2018 was increase (decrease)

comprehensive 12.50~17.00) if

income equity ' - Market illiquidity + the multiplier

Investments discount rate (As of were higher

without an active June 30, 2018 was (lower)

market 30%) - the market
illiquidity

discount were
lower (higher)

(Continued)
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6) Fair value measurements in Level 3— sensitivity analysis of reasonably possible

alternative assumptions

For fair value measurements in Level 3, changing one or more of the assumptions would
have the following effects on profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

June 3¢, 2018

Financial assets fair value through other
comprehensive income

Equity investments without an active
market

Equity investments without an active
market

Other comprehensive income

Input Assumptions Favourable Unfavourable
Multiplier of 5% $ 176 (176}
price-to-earnings
ratio
Ligquidity discount 3% 252 (252)

The favourable and unfavourable effects represent the changes in fair value, and fair
value is based on a variety of unobservable inputs calculated using a valuation technique.

(q) Financial risk management

The disclosures of objectives and policies of the Group's financial risk management are the same as
these in the note 6(q) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.

(r) Capital management

The disclosures of objectives, policies and procedures of the Group's capital management are the
same as those of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. For
related information, please refer to note 6(r) to the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended December 31, 2017,

Related-party transactions

(a) Parent company and ultimate controlling party

The Company is the ultimate controlling party of the Group.

(b) Significant related-party transactions: none.

(Continued)
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(c¢) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
Short-term employee benefits $ 5,820 8,551 17,237 20,336
Post-employment benefits 278 380 525 613
Share-based payment - - 1,210 689
S 6,098 8,931 18.972 21,638

{8) Piledged assets
The carrying values of pledged assets were as follows:

December 31,

Pledged assets Object June 30, 2018 2017 June 30, 2017
Restricted certificates  Guarantee for the $ 1,002 997 986
of depaosit (other Group's logistics
current assets) operations
Restricted certificates ~ Guarantee for 3,000 3,000 3,000
of deposit (other customs
non-current assets)
Restricted certificates  Guarantee for the 660 660 660
of deposit (other Group's logistics
non-current assets) operations
Property, plant and
equipment:
Land Guarantee for long- 156,092 156,092 156,092

term and short-term
borrowings and the
Group's logistics
operations
Buildings Guarantee for long- ' 30,784 31,159 31,912
term and short-term ‘
borrowings and the
Group's logistics
operations

$ 191,538 191,908 192,650

(Continued)
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(9) Commitments and contingencies

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Group provided certificates of deposit, land, and buildings as collateral to the banks for the
performance of freight forwarding contracts in 2018 and 2017. As of June 30, 2018, December 31
and June 30, 2017, the guarantees from the banks were $147,633 thousand, $149,639 thousand and
$150,883 thousand, respectively, and the used amounts were $103,605 thousand, $116,801 thousand
and $112,276 thousand, respectively.

As of June 30, 2018, December 31 and June 30, 2017, the Group had outstanding letters of credit
totaling $42,633 thousand, $44,639 thousand and $45,883 thousand, respectively. As of June 30,
2018, December 31 and June 30, 2017, the guarantees recorded for customs duty were $10,534
thousand, $8,442 thousand and $8,354 thousand, respectively.

The consolidated subsidiary DFS was sued by a customer who originally had a business transaction
with DIMUS. The lawsuit concerns damage to a product that was delivered. DFS claimed that it
was neither engaged with the customer nor the one who delivered the product. Furthermore, DIMUS
had no negligence in delivering the product. Therefore, the Company claimed that the lawsuit and
compensation requested by the customer did not comply with the law. The District Court had ruled
that DFS should compensate the customer $7,602 thousand plus annual interest of 5% from March §,
2011, until the compensation was settled. However, DFS was not satisfied with the ruling and filed
an appeal. In June 2016, the High court ruied the case in DFS’s favor. The customer was dissatisfied
with the result and appealed to the Supreme Court. The Supreme Court ruled the case in DFS’s favor
and the case was closed.

In 2014, a customer of the consolidated subsidiary, DIMHK, has an unclaimed shipment. After
notifying the customer and unable to collect the storage fee from the customer in April 2014,
DIMHK held an auction and sold the shipment in June 2014, In June 2016, the customer sued
DIMHK for selling the shipment without the customer’s consent and claimed for the compensation
of USD1,414 thousand. Shenzhen Qianhai Cooperation Zone People’s Court held the first hearing of
the case in October 2016; and the case is still under litigation.

(10) Losses Due to Major Disasters: None

(11) Subsequent Events: None

(Continued)
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(12) Other
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The following is a summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses by
function:
By function] Three months ended June 30, 2018 Three months ended June 30, 2017
Operating | Operating Operating | Operating
By item costs expenses Total costs expenses Total
Employee benefits
Salary 6,267 278,689 284,956 8,043 263,408 271,451
Labor and health insurance 127 39,436 39,563 209 40,887 41,096
Pension 71 8,475 8,546 112 7,421 7,533
Directors' remuneration - 2,443 2,443 - 2,282 2,282
Others 221 26,677 26,898 422 21,768 22,190
Depreciation - 10,479 10,479 - 10,222 10,222
iAmortization - 31 31 - 38 38
By function Six months ended June 30, 2018 Six months ended June 30, 2017
Operating | Operating Operating | Operating
By item costs expenses Total costs expenses Total
Employee benefits
Salary 12,575 560,325 572,900 17,297 514,262 531,559
I.abor and health insurance 206 78,551 78,757 347 68,790 69,137
Pension 181 16,833 17,014 223 15,011 15,234
Directors' remuneration - 4,303 4,303 - 4,055 4,055
Others 810 54,442 55,252 853 48,032 48,885
Depreciation - 21,601 21,601 - 22,748 22,748
Amortization - 44 44 - 56 56

(a)

Seasonality or cyclically of interim operations

The Group's operations were not affected by seasonality or cyclically factors.

{Continued)
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{13) Other disclosures

(a)

Information on significant transactions

42

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers™ for the Group:

(i) Loans exte

nded to other parties

Liril: thousand dollars

Tighest balsnce Range of | Purposes of
of financing o Actuad usage | Interest fund finabeing  Transaction
olker partics amount e far the amouni for  |Ressons for| Allowance Individusl | Limitation on
Nameof | Nameof Related| during the Ending | during the |dwring the[ borrower |business beiween] shori-ierm | for bad Collaterst | funding loan
N, lender borrower| Aceount name| party pesiod balance |peviod (Note 3 riod (Mo 1} o parties Finapcing debt Name | Value |limiis (Note 2}
] HOLDIKG DIMTW |Accounts Yes 27,539 28,705 28,705 - ) - Operaling - - 185,293 0,975
reccivable from capital
lrelated parties.
2 [FSC DIMTW  |Accounts Yes 119551 119551 £19.551 - {2) - [operaling - - 185,243 140971
Ireceivable from keapilel
elated partics
3 |DFSTW [DIMTW  Accounts Yes 74 4 T4 - {2) - [Operating - - 185,243 740,971
freceivable from [capitat
elated partfes

Note 1: Purpose of fund nancing for the barrower:

{1} Busi

ness between the two parties.

{2) Funds required for operalions

provided to an indwvidual

Note 2: Based on the Company's midelines, the allowabl o2te amoun| of financing provided 1o athers cannot excead 40% of the Companmy's steckliolders aquity, and the
counlerparty caanol exceed 10%4 of the Company’s slockholders' equity.
Note 3; The amounts were eliminated #n the conselidated interim financial stalements,
(ii) Guarantees and endorsements for other parties
Limitadion on
Counter-pany of amount of  |Higheal balsnce| Eatance of Propery i Parent Ay jary E 4
wAram et or endorsement] puavantees and | for guaraniees | guaraniees pledged on | Ratio of acenmulated | amonal for il { d . (1]
Relationship endorsemenis and and guarantees | amounts of guaraniees] p g to | g te | third partics on
withihe | foraspecific | eadorsements |eadorsements | Actual usage An and eadossements o and third panties on |third partics on Tehall ol
Kame ol Campany enlerprise during the  |as of repordi duringl end nel worlh of the Jatest behall of beha!f of parent| companics in
No. | company Name {Nole 1) {Nole 2} 3 iale tbe period {Amount) financial siatemenls. {Noic 2) subsidiary cashpany Mainland China
o [DIMTW [DIMMY 3 258,000 14,045 3,7M 3,71 3,714 019% 516,000 Y N N
o [DIMTW [DIMSG 3 158,000 2221 163717 16377 16377 084 % 516,000 Y N N
o [DIMTW  [DIMVN 3 258,600 4,505 3802 3,809 3509 020% 516,000 Y N N
a [DIMTW  [DIMIN & 3 258,600 1,024 1029 1,029 1029 005 % 516,000 Y N r
[CIMYN &
IDIMTH
0 {DIMTW PDIMKR 3 258,000 14,933 14,933 14933 14923 e % 516,000 Y N N
Male I: Relaiionship with The Company are listed 25 befow:
{1} Anenlity having business relationship with DIMTW
{2) A scbsidiary in which DIMTW holds directly over 0% ol equity interest,
§3)  Aninvesiee inwhich DIMTW and its subsidiaries holds over 30% of equily interest
{4) Aninvestor who direcily or indizectly holds over 50% of equity interest of DIMTW,
{5)  Anenlity thal has provided muarantees 1o DINTW, and vice versa, dus io contractusl agreements.
{6) Aninvesice in which DIMTW conjuncily invested with cther investor, and for which DIMTW has provided in prop 1o its shareholding p
Note2: Based on the Company's | I amount of' and end provided 1o others cannc! exceed 40% of the Company's issued capilal, while the puaraniee and endorsement for an

individual counlerpasty cannol exceed 20% of the Company's issued capital

(iii) Information regarding securities held as of June 30, 2018 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures}
Relationship Ending balance
Category and name with the security Number of Holding | Market value
Name of holder of security issuer Recorded account shares Baok value | percentape {note) Remarks

IDIMTW IGlobal Sky Express Taiwan [Financial asses at fair value through other 10,000 100 1.00 % 100
Ltd. preh income non-current

[EIMTW Evergreen Air Cargo [Financial asseis a1 fair value through other 29,000 290 0.02 % 90
crvice Corporation comprehensive income  mon-cuzrent

IDIMSG Burwill Holdings Ltd. Financia! assets at fair value through ather 22,000 19 - 19
comprchensive income  non-current

DIMSG [Stamford Land Financial assets at fair valkze through other 5,000 33 - 33
somprehensive income  non-corrent

DIMSG [Biraits Continental Logistics] [Financial asscts at fair value threugh other 39,800 2917 1990 % 2817
[Co. Ltd. komprehensive ingome  non~gurrent

DIMMY IFL. Network [Financial asscts at fair valuc through other - 2,113 - 2,113

ive income  non-current

Note : Due 1o lack of quoted prices, the fair value of financial assels carried at cost  non-current are the bet equity or book value of the investment as of the financial postion datc.
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(iv) Accumulated holding amount of a single security in excess of NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None,

(v} Acquisition of real estate in excess of NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.

(vi) Disposal of real estate in excess of NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.

(vii) Sales to or purchases from related parties in excess of NTD100 million or 20% of DIMTW's issued share capital: None.

(viii) Receivables from related parties in excess of NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital
p p p

Balance of Past-due receivables from | Subsequently received |Allowance
Name of receivables from  |Turnover related party amount of receivable | for bad
related party | Counter-party | Relationship | related party (nofe 3} rate Amount [Action taken | from related party debts
FSC IDIMTW Subsidiary 168.311 - % - - -
(Note 1)
FSC DIL Subsidiary 216,717 - % - - -
’ (Note 2)

Note 1: Loan from the subsidiary of $119,551 and other receivable of $48,760.
Note 2: Paid on behalf of DIMTW,
Note 3: The amount was eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(ix) Financial derivative instrument transactions: Please refer to notes 6(b).

(x) Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions

Existing Transaction details
relationship with Pereentage of total
No. Name of counter- | counter-party Amount consolidzted revenue
Note 1)} Name of company party {Note 2} Account name {Notes 3 and 4) Terms of trading or fotal asscis

0 [DIMTW DIMUS 1 Accounts reccivable— 16,399 Negotiated 0.39 %
related pastics

0 [DIMTW DIMCN 1 JAccounts receivable— 11,032 [Negotiated 0.26 %
related parties

0 [DIMTW DIMCN 1 lAccounts payable —related 7,544 [Nepotiated 0.18 %
partics

0 [DMTW DIMCN ] Freight revenue— reecived 35,847 [Nepotiated 0.44 %
lon behalf

0 [DIMTW DIMHK 1 [Freight revenue—received 12,701 Negotiated 0.16 %
lon behalf

0  DIMTW ZJDCN 1 Freight revenue-—received 8,813 Negotiated 031 %
jon behalf

0 [DIMTW DIMMY 1 Freight revenue —received 8,375 Negotiated 010 %
jon behalf

0 |[DIMTW DIMSG 1 Freight revenue —recelived 20,100 [Negotiated 0.25 %
lon behalf

0 [DIMTW DIMUS 1 [Freight revenue —reeeived 50,406 [Negotiated 0.62 %
fory behalf

¢ [DIMTW [DIMCN 1 [Freight expense— deduction (36,434 ¥Negotiated 0.45 %
lof freight revenue

¢ |DIMTW IDIMHK 1 Freight expense— deduction (30,035)Negotiated 037 %
lof freight revenue

0  |DIMTW [DIMSG I [Freight expense— deduction (8,113)Negotiated 010 %
lof freight revenue

0 [DIMTW DIMUS 1 [Freight expense —deduction (22,568)Negotiated 0.28 %
lof freight revenue

0 [DIMTW [ZIDCN 1 [Feeight expense — deduction (15,341 ¥Negotiated 0.19 %
jof freight revenue

0 [DIMTW [DIVMNL 1 Freight expense —deduction {9,287 Negotiated 011 %
of freight revenuc

1 [FSC DIMTW 2 JAccounts receivable— 168,311 [Negotiated 197 %
related partics

1 [F8C IDIL 3 lAccounts receivable— 216,717 [Negotiated 511 %
related partics

2 HOLDING DIMTW 2 [Accounts reccivable — 28,705 [Negotiated 0.68 %
refated partics

3 |FSCHK DIMHK 3 Sales revenue 19,689 [Ncgotiated . 0.24 %

3 |FSCHK [ZIDCN 3 [Sales revenue 13,638 [Negotiated 0.17 %

3 |FSCHK DIMUS 3 [Sales revenue 16,055 [Nepotiated 0.20 %

(Continued)
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Existing Transaction details
relationship with Percentage of total
No. Name of counter- courter-party Amount consolidated revenue
Note 1} Name of company party (Note 2) Account name {Notes3 and 4) | Terms of trading or total asscts
3 [FSCHK DIMMY 3 Sales revenue 12,834 [Negotiated 016 %
3 [FSCHK DFSCN 3 [Sales revenue 23,083 [Negotiated 0.28 %
3 |[FSCHK DIMPH 3 [Sales revenue 11,516 [Nepaotiated 0.4 %
Note 1:  Company numbering is as follows;
(1} Parent company is (.
(2) Subsidiary starts from 1.
Note 2:  The number of the relationship with the transaction counterparty represents the following:
(1) 1 represents downsiream transactions.
(2) 2 represents upstream transactions,
(3) 3 represents lateral transactions.
Note 3:  Only an amount over $7,000 shall be disclosed.
Note 4:  The amount was eliminated in the consolidated finencial statements.

Information on investees

The following is the information on

investees for the six months ended June 30, 2018 (excluding information on investees in

Mainland China}:
Ipitial investment (Amourt) Ending balance Net income Investment
Name of the December 31, Ratlg of | Bookvalue (losses) of | incomie (losses)

invesior Name of invesice Location Anin butinesses June 30, 2018 2017 Shares shares moic 2} investee (note 2} Noles
DIMTW DFSTW [Taiwan [Ocean freight forwarding 15,444 15,444 1,200,000 99 44 134044 13043 18,043 | Note 5
DIMTW HoLDIKG [Bermuda [Holding company 164,845 164,845 3,089,000 100 4y 132,885 44294 44294 | Nole 3
[CIMTW [DIMSG PBingapore L-ogistics & warehousing 108,362 108,362 4,650,000 86 %4 368,912 68,467 58,057 | Nele s
DINTW [DIL Brifish Virgin [s  [Holding company 412313 472313  (Nole 1y 1W00% 201088 1,718, {51,718 Nole 3
ICHATW FSC Aritish Virgin Is Settiement center N5 315 £0,000 2093 272052 310,545 62,103 | Note 3
[DIMTW FSCHE Hong Kong [Sestlement cenler 236 236 7500 15 %4 69,784 101,593 15,293 | Note 3
DFSTW FSCHE Heng Kong [Seal; center 235 235 1500 15 % 12,162 131,953 15,299 | Note 3
DIL DIMUS US.a K5lobal air and ocean freight forwarder 218,636 238,686 4,961,000 100 % 356,100 20,669 20,669 | Note 3
DIL [CHALGE UK [Global air and ocean fresght forwarder {5,624 {5,624 300,000 38 % {13,922 (852] (852 Nowe 5
D1, DIMSG [singapore [ omistics & warehausing 23,904 23,904 40,006 14 % 42,028 68,467 9510 Note s
[OIL DIMHR biong Konrg [Logistics & warchousing 427,448 427348 300,000 99 Y% 1,626,648 231,649 231,649 | Note d
DL [GMS [Hong Kong [Legisties & warehousing - - (Nole 1) 100 24 24 {312,693 {312,693) Nole 3
[GMS [DIMPH [Plilippines [Global air and ocean freipht forwarder 38,395 - 180,000 60 % 38,399 - - Nole 5
[FSCHK DIMGE [G.K |Global air and ocean freight forwarder 20,126 - 500,000 63 % (23,203 - - Kote s
IIMUS [DCBUS USA [Brokerage service 13,532 13,512 1.000 100 %4 28,840 (2,315 (2.315)] Note 3
IDIMHE [FSC [British Virgin Is. [Selllement center &7 617 10,000 0 %Y 508 310,545 86327 [ Nete 3
DHNHE DIMVN [Vietnan: Global air and ocean freight forwarder 2,090 2,090 (Nole [y 75 % 5,644 1,349 1,012 | Note 5
MAMHK [FSCHK Hong Kong FSetfement center 350 350 17,500 35 oy 168,380 101,593 35,698 | Note 3
DINSG [FSC [Eritish Virgin Is [Settlement center 318 3B 10,000 20 %4 299 310,545 62,109 | Note 3
[DIMSG DIMIN [India [Glohal air 2nd oczan freight forwarder 5303 5,303 960,000 60 %3 8218 {1,889 {1,133} Nole $
HOLDING [DIMMY Malaysia [Global air &nd ocean freight fonwarder 65,516 65,556 250,000 160 %4 112241 6,227 6,227 | Nole 5
HOLDING  [DILMY alaysia Klobal logisiics supply chain management 1,592 1,592 186,000 499 1,090 14 (143 ole §

[censutiancy
HOLDING [DIMTH [Thailand Global air and ocean (reight forwarder T642 642 T35.000 19 4% 36,026 (2,308 (1,131) Note 5
HOLDING DIMPH hilippines $Gobal air and ocean frtight forwarder 4,026 4,026 120000 40 84- 24,500 2,856 1,142 [ Xote 5
HOLIING DIMAL JAuseralia [CHobal air and ocean freight forwarder 16,460 16,460 60,000 L % (15,981 (11,273; (11,273) Nowe 5
[HOLD[NG DIMKR [Korea [Global air and a¢ean freiphi forwarder 19,286 19,386 120,000 100 44 27,900 {621 {621 Note 5
|HOLD[NG pbmMCcA KCanzda lir freight forwarder 15,646 15656 (Notwel) 100 % 62,700 2633 2,633 [ Note 5
|HOLDH\‘G DIMNL [etherdands [Global sir and oecan freight forwarder 11,644 11,644 1,000 100 %4 {297 (8,553 (8,553 Naie 5
|HOLDING IDFSHK [Hang Kong [Ocean freighi forwarder 25,393 25,393 71,000 99 %4 359,271 57,622 57,616 | Note §
IHGLDING [DTLHK [Hang Kong [Trucking service 41,076 41,676 49,000 100 %4 34,903 (3,355 (3.355) Nole 5
IHGLD[NG [DSLUS U.S.A [Logistics & warehousing 15,840 15,840 50,000 100 %4 23,042 1,137 1,137 Kole §
[DFSHE IFSCHK {Hong Kong Setifement cenler 566 566 17,500 35 % 163,380 101,993 35,657 | Nole3
DIMMY [Danau Muhibbah S$dn. Bhd. DMataysia [Real estate investment 2621 2621 Molel) 100 %4 {1,259 . -
IDIMPH [Peeriess Express Fornarders Philippines [Frucking service 954 954 4,060,000 40 % 974 156 60
[Corp.

[DIMSG Logicnirix [ndia PviLid [india [Brokerage service 1,830 - 4,000,000 40 % 1,830 - -

Note b: The company was established 25 a limited company.
Note2; The amount was eliminaled in the consclidated interim financis] siatements, exeepl for Logicentrix India Pvi Lid
Noled: The fnancial stalements of the invesles were reviewed by the andilors of the parent company, and were recognized under the squity method.
Nole4: The financial sialements of the investes were reviewsd by a regional accounting firm, and were recognized under Lthe equity metfiod

Note 5: The finaneial statements of the investoe were nol reviewed by audilors and were fumished to us by the investes, and were zecognized under e equity merhod.
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Information on investment in mainland China

(@

(i)

(ifi)

The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information
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Unit: th d dellars
Beginning Ending
remitiance remittance Direct
batance- Current remiftance / balance- indirect Current A 1
i bie i U sharcheldings| investment i of|
Method of | investment {amennt) investment Net income Jor Bavestmenis] inceme and | Book value | eamings in
Name of invester in Mainland Issued  [invesiment| (amount) from | Invested | Returned | (amouni} from | (Josses) of (*%)in the | losses (Notes| {Notes2 current
China Main businesses capital (Notel} Taiwan Amount Andunt Taiwan Investee Company 220d3) and 3) &
A1) [Global air and acean S9281 (2) 27,488 - - 27,488 24295 D) 18,221 153,317 -
freight forwarder KUSD902) )
IGILSHA [Logistics & warehousing 5,970 (2) 6,005 - - 6,035 {6,220; M8 % {6,220 (22,901 -
UsD200) K:sD200)
[DIMCR [Glebal 2ir and ocear 163397 (2) - . - - (6,367, 160 % (6,567, 229,152 -
freight forwarder
DILSZX [Logistics & warchousing 10958] (2] - - - - 1,102 100 % 1102 4719 -
IDFSCN IGlobal air and ocean 9M (2) - - - - 23,643 160 % 1B,687 137,936 -
freicht farwarder
IDiversified Transportation {China) JTrucking service 25802 (2) - - - - (1,042 100 % (1,042 16,540 -
Co., Ltd.
[Yuhang Int1 Logistics (Dalizn) Co.jGlobal air and ocean wese| (2 - - - - 6712 23 % 1,678 20,943 -
[Lid. reight forwarder
[Diversified International Logistics [Giobal air and ocean 9203 {2} - - - - - 10 % - 2,203 -
Service Company Lid [ireighl forwarder
Note 1: The method of invesiment is divided into the following thzee methods:
{1) Investing directly in Mainland China,
(2) Through theil to third-regi isting companies (hen investing in Mainland China. (through Bermuda and Brilish Virgin Islands.).
(3) Othermethods .
Noie2: Other than Yulang Int) Logisties (Bafian) Co., Ltd, and Hushan (Shanghai, the & pany within the Company, such as operaling income / expense, payable / { equity and i
gain / loss under (he equity melhod, have been eliminated upon consolidation.
Nole 3: The financial sialaments were reviewed by an international ing firm in fon with the ROC fim

Wate 4. The gain (loss) of the investee were nol reviewed and were recopnized as investmenl income (Joss) under the equity methed.

Limitation on investment in Mainland China

Unit: thousand dollars

Company

name

Aggregate investment amount
remitted from Taiwan fo
Mainland Ckina at end of period

Approved investment (amount) |Limitation on inv

by Ministry of Economic Affairs
Investment Commission

estment in Mainland
China in accordance with regulations
of Ministry of Economic Affairs

(Note2) {Note2) Investment Commission (Note 1)
DIMTW 33,583 73,140 1,111,456
(USD1,102) (USD2,400)

Note 1: Tt represents 60% of the Company's net equity.
Note 2: USD:NT$=1:30.475.
Significant transactions

Please refer to note 13(a) for transactions with investees in Mainland China for the six months ended June 30, 2018. All
transactions were eliminated upon consolidation.
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(14) Segment information

Information on reportable segments and reconciliation for the Group is as follows:
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Adjustments
and
Asia American Europe eliminations Total
Three months ended June 30, 2018
Revenue: .
From customers other than the parent § 3,144,076 933,827 145,936 - 4,223 839
company and subsidiaries
From the parent company and subsidiaries 58.407 - - (58.407) -
Total revenue §  3.202.483 933.827 145,936 (58,407) 4,223,839
Segment income h 82,012 29.591 (6.814) - 104,789
Three months ended June 30, 2017
Revenue:
From customers other than the parent § 2914534 1,003,771 179,252 - 4,097,557
company and subsidiaries
From the parent company and subsidiaries 56.258 - - (56.258) -
Total revenue $ 2,970,792 1.003,771 179,252 (56,258) 4,097,557
Segment income :) 45,239 29,611 906 - 75,756
Six months ended June 30, 2018
Revenue:
From customers other than the parent $ 6,080,059 1,771,642 202,183 - 8,143,884
company and subsidiaries
From the parent company and subsidiaries 138.319 - - (138.319) -
Total revenue 5 6218378 1,771,642 292,183 (138,319) 8,143,884
Segment income S 134,766 34,890 (9,403) - 160,253
Six months ended June 30, 2017
Revenue:
From customers other than the parent $ 5,883,289 1,881,277 369,889 - 8,134,455
company and subsidiaries
From the parent company and subsidiaries 91.737 - - {91.737) -
Total revenue $ 5975026 1,881,277 369.889 {91.737) 8,134,455
Segment income $ 73,654 51,888 347 - 125,889

The inter-company revenue of $58.407 thousand, $56,258 thousand, $138,319 thousand and $91,737
thousand for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, was eliminated.






